
LEAVENWORTH PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

100 N. 5th Street 
Leavenworth, KS  66048 

 
REGULAR SESSION 

Wednesday, March 2, 2022 
6:00 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

CANCELLED DUE TO LACK OF QUORUM.  RESCHEDULED FOR APRIL 6, 2022 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 

1. Roll Call/Establish Quorum 

2. Approval of Minutes:  August 4, 2021 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 

      None 
 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

2. REVIEW (or REVISION TO) BYLAWS 
Review proposed revisions to Bylaws. 

3. 2022-01 LPC – 410 S. 2ND STREET 
A State Law review under the US Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation 
for the proposed exterior renovations of the property located at 410 S. 2nd Street, a 
property located in the Leavenworth Industrial Historic District. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS/CORRESPONDENCE: 

1. FYI – MINOR CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS (20) 

 900 S. Esplanade – install AC & furnace 

 101 N. 5th Street – complete renovation of 2nd floor apartment 

 1028 2nd Avenue – paint exterior of house grey & white 

 928 S. Esplanade – upgrade existing handrails and install additional handrails 

 218 Pine – roof replacement 



 626 Cherokee – install wall sign for Cell Phone Repair 

 1015 S. 3rd Street – replace furnace and water heater 

 1000 S. Esplanade – roof replacement 

 603 Shawnee – install ADA ramp 

 609 Shawnee – install ADA ramp 

 406 N. Broadway – replace HVAC & furnace 

 620 Cherokee – install ADA ramp 

 601 Middle – roof replacement 

 618 Cherokee – reface wall sign for Haymarket Event Center 

 626 Cherokee – interior modifications (do not affect character-defining elements), 
entry door modifications and ADA ramp   

 507 N. Esplanade – replace existing privacy fence 

 618 Cherokee – install ADA ramp 

 207-B Delaware – install ADA ramp 

 508 S. Broadway – repair portico, roof, framing repairs, and repair metal railing on 
lower roof, etc. 

 513 Delaware – install ADA ramp 
 
AJOURN 
 

 
 



LEAVENWORTH PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

 

BYLAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 

 The following rules and regulations governing the procedures of the Leavenworth 

Historic Landmarks and Appeals Board (Board) are adopted. 

 

Article I – Members 

 

1. The membership of the Board is determined by Ordinance No. 7386.  A majority 

of the currently duly appointed Board shall constitute a quorum. 

 

2. Members shall be appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the City 

Commission.  Appointments shall be made for three-year terms.  Vacancies shall 

be filled by appointment for the unexpired term.  Members of the Board shall be 

residents of the City of Leavenworth and serve without compensation. 

 

Article II – Officers 

 

1. The Board shall organize annually at the first regular meeting after the annual 

appointment of new members but no later than the February meeting. 

 

2. The Commission shall elect a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson from among the 

appointed members at the annual organization meeting.  The officers shall serve for 

one year or until replaced. 

 

3. The City Planner shall serve as the Secretary. 

 

4. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and public hearings of the Board; 

shall decide all points of order and procedure; shall certify actions of the Board 

pursuant to the ordinance; and shall transmit reports and recommendations to the 

governing body with the assistance of the Secretary. 

 

5. The Vice-Chairperson shall assume the duties of the Chairperson in his absence. 

 

6. The Secretary shall be responsible for keeping the Board minutes, sending agendas 

to Board members, carrying out written correspondence, maintaining Board 

records, certifying Board actions to the State Historic Preservation Office, and 

performing such other duties as the Board may reasonably require. 

 

7. Should a Board member miss twohree regular monthly meetings in any 12-month 

month period, the Board shall determine if the City Commission should be 

petitioned to replace that Board member. 

 

Article III – Meetings 

 



1. The Board shall meet monthly, on an as needed basis, on the first Wednesday of 

the month at 6:00 p.m. in the Commission Auditorium, 1st Floor, City Hall, 100 N. 

5th Street, Leavenworth, Kansas.  When the first Wednesday falls on a holiday, a 

new meeting date shall be established. 

 

2. Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or, in his absence, by the Vice-

Chairperson.  Notice of special meetings shall be given by the Secretary to Board 

members at least three days prior to such meeting and shall state the purpose and 

time of the meeting. 

 

3. All regular and special meetings, hearings and records shall be open to the public. 

 

4. A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.  

If a quorum is not present at a regular or special meeting, those present may either 

adjourn the meeting or hold the meeting to consider such matters as are on the 

agenda.  No action shall be taken at such a meeting and the Board shall continue 

official action on any agenda items until a subsequent meeting when a quorum is 

present. 

 

5. The order of business at all meetings shall be as follows: 

 

a. Call to order 

b. Roll call Determination of quorum  

c. Reading and Aapproval of minutes 

d. Old business 

e. New business and/or public hearings 

f. Reports of committees 

g. Reports of officers and related personnel 

h. Adjournment 

 

6. Motions shall be restated by the Chairperson before a vote is taken.  The name of 

the maker and supporter of a motion shall be recorded. 

 

7. An affirmative vote of a majority of the total membership is needed to authorize 

any official Board action, unless otherwise specified by statute or ordinance. 

 

8. All members including the Chairperson shall have a vote when present unless a 

person shall disqualify him/herself from voting on any decision in which they might 

express a conflict of interest.  In the event of a conflict of interest, the member shall 

so state before discussion of the item and shall remove him/herself from the panel. 

 

9. Procedure may follow commonly accepted parliamentary rules for boards.  

 

10. All persons wishing to address the Board shall first be recognized by the Chair and 

invited to a podium to introduce themselves by name and address to be entered into 

the record of the meeting.  Thereafter, the Board may freely discourse with the 

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Font color: Red, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Font color: Red, Strikethrough

Formatted: Font color: Red



citizen.  Upon concluding citizen testimony, the Chair may call for Board 

discussion at which time Board members may freely discourse with each other. 

 

Article IV – Committees 

 

 The Chairperson may appoint any standing committee deemed necessary for the 

review and study of Board business and any special committee seeking research and 

recommendations on special topics.  Any committee may contain up to four Board 

members. 

 

Article V – Board Staff 

 

1. The Board may employ staff and/or professional consultants, as it may require, 

subject to approved budgetary limitations.  The City Commission shall approve all 

new employees and all contracts for professional services in excess of $10,000. 

 

2. The staff shall conduct business and prepare reports and agendas for the Board 

pursuant to the ordinance, state law and appropriate City policies. 

 

3. The staff shall act as liaison between the Board and the City commission, other 

appropriate boards/commissions, the State of Kansas, the National Register of 

Historic Places and the general public. 

 

4. The staff shall prepare an annual budget and annual review of the ordinance and 

historic resources survey and make recommendations for modifications. 

 

5. The staff shall accept other responsibilities as may be directed by the Board, the 

Governing Body or the City Manager. 

 

Article VI – Records and Reports 

 

1. The Board shall keep a record of its transactions, findings and determinations and 

recommendations. 

 

2. All records shall be available for public review. 

 

3. The Board shall annually review the historic resources survey and the ordinance to 

determine needed revisions and shall make a report and recommendation to the 

governing body regarding same. 

 

Article VII – Publicity 

 

1. The Board shall encourage the public to attend its regular meetings and shall take 

positive action to keep its activities before the public by supplying newspapers and 

other media with information and by having members and staff appear before civic 

groups to discuss the purpose and the work of the Board. 



 

2. The ordinance provides authority for the Board to initiate and recommend 

participation in grant programs to improve historic resources, and to be the City’s 

point of contact for historical, archeological, and related associations in keeping 

with the objective to promote Leavenworth’s built-history. 

 

Article VIII – Amendments 

 

These rules of procedure may be amended by an affirmative vote by a majority of the Board 

provided such proposed amendment has been submitted in writing to each member at least 

three days prior to the meeting at which such action is to be taken. 

 

Article IX – Rules of Order 

 

1. Open Public Meetings.  All meetings and study sessions shall be open to the public.  

A record must be kept of all business transacted. 

 

2. Public Hearings.  The Chairperson may prescribe procedures for the conduct of 

public hearings including setting a time limit for citizen input in order to provide a 

fair and impartial presentation of all sides of a request. 

 

 

Passed and approved this _____ day of __________________, 2022019. 

 

 

 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Secretary 

 

 

 

 












































































































































